BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH
TELEPHONE:

020 8464 3333

CONTACT: Jo Partridge
Joanne.Partridge@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE:
FAX:

020 8461 7694
020 8290 0608

DATE: 15 November 2021

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH PDS INFORMATION BRIEFING
Meeting to be held on Tuesday 23 NOVEMBER 2021
This briefing will only be debated if a member of the Committee requests a discussion
be held, in which case please inform the Clerk 24 hours in advance indicating the
aspects of the information item you wish to discuss. In addition, questions on the
briefing should also be sent to the Clerk at least 24 hours before the meeting.

1

ACH QUARTER 2 RISK REGISTER (Pages 3 - 14)

2

LOCAL ACCOUNT 2020/21 (Pages 15 - 54)

3

MINUTES FROM THE HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON
7TH OCTOBER 2021 (Pages 55 - 68)

Members and Co-opted Members have been provided with advanced copies of the Part 1 (Public)
briefing via email. The Part 1 (Public) briefing is also available on the Council website at the
following link:
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=559&Year=0

Copies of the Part 1 (Public) documents referred to above can be obtained from
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

This page is left intentionally blank

Information Item 1
Report No.
ACH21-045

London Borough of Bromley
PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker:

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date:

Tuesday 23 November 2021

Decision Type:

Non-Urgent

Title:

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH SERVICES RISK REGISTER –
QUARTER 2, 2021/22

Contact Officer:

Naheed Chaudhry, Assistant Director Strategy, Performance and Corporate
Transformation
Tel: 020 8461 7554 Email: naheed.chaudhry@bromley.gov.uk

Non-Executive

Non-Key

Denise Mantell, Strategy Officer
Tel: 020 8313 4113 E-mail: denise.mantell@bromley.gov.uk
Chief Officer:

Kim Carey, Interim Director, Adult Social Care

Ward:

N/A

1.

Reason for report

1.1

Risk Management is the identification, analysis and overall control of those risks which can
impact on the Council’s ability to deliver its priorities and objectives. Adult Care and Health
Services’ Risk Register covers those risks which impact on its ability to deliver its priorities and
objectives. This report enables the Portfolio Holder to scrutinise those risks and the actions
taken to control them in line with Audit Sub-Committee recommendations.

________________________________________________________________________________
2.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

Members of the Adult Care and Health Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee are asked
to note:


the current Adult Care and Health Services’ Risk Register and the existing controls in place
to mitigate the risks.

1

Page 3

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children
1. Summary of Impact:
________________________________________________________________________________
Corporate Policy
1.

Policy Status: Not Applicable

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council Safe Bromley Supporting Independence Healthy Bromley
________________________________________________________________________________
Financial
1.

Cost of proposal: Not Applicable:

2.

Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3.

Budget head/performance centre:

4.

Total current budget for this head: £

5.
Source of funding:
________________________________________________________________________________
Personnel
1.

Number of staff (current and additional):

2.
If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:
________________________________________________________________________________
Legal
1.

Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement Non-Statutory - Government Guidance None:
Further Details

2.
Call-in: Not Applicable
________________________________________________________________________________
Procurement
1.
Summary of Procurement Implications:
________________________________________________________________________________
Customer Impact
1.
Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):
________________________________________________________________________________
Ward Councillor Views
1.

Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2.

Summary of Ward Councillors comments:

2

Page 4

3.
3.1

COMMENTARY
Background
Risk Management is the identification, analysis and overall control of those risks which can
impact on the Council’s ability to deliver its priorities and objectives. The Adult Care and Health
Services Risk Register feeds into the Corporate Risk Register, via the Corporate Risk
Management Group, and comprises the high level departmental risks which are underpinned by
more detailed registers contained within the divisional business plans.

3.2

Audit Sub-Committee agreed that the Corporate and Departmental Risk Registers would be
reviewed at their meetings twice a year and then subsequently scrutinised by the relevant PDS
Committee. Internal processes require that the departmental risk registers be updated and agreed
by the Departmental Leadership Team (DLT) on a quarterly basis and be reviewed by the
Corporate Risk Management Group.

3.3

The Adult Care and Health Risk Register 2021/22 Quarter 2 update was agreed by Adult Services
Leadership Team in October 2021.

3.4

The Adult Care and Health Services Risk Register is attached as Appendix 1. The risks included in
the Risk Register are outlined below.
Risk Reference

Risk

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Failure to deliver Financial Strategy
Failure to deliver effective Adult Social Care services
Failure to deliver effective Learning Disability services
Deprivation of Liberty
Recruitment and Retention - ASC
Transport – Children and Adults
Social Care Information System
Inability to deliver an effective Public Health service
Business Interruption / Emergency Planning
Data Collections
Failure to deliver partial implementation of Health & Social Care
Integration

3.5

The last six months has seen the easing of national restrictions in response to the coronavirus
pandemic. This has led to more services, especially those in the community, being re-instated
or returning to face-to-face delivery as well as retaining virtual services. However, there has
also been an increase in the number of referrals to Adult Social Care and assessments being
completed. This continues to impact on the ability to reduce both gross and net risks.

3.6

Since June 2021, when PDS last saw the Risk Register, the following change has been made to
the gross and net (current) risks.


3.7

Risk 5 – Recruitment and Retention – change of net/current risk from 6 to 3

Mitigating actions have seen three high risks reduced to significant risk, three high risks reduced
to low risk, one significant risk reduced to low risk and two medium risks reduced to low risk.

3

Page 5

Level of Risk
High
Significant
Medium
Low
Total

Gross Risk
No.
7
2
2
0
11

Net Risk
%
64%
18%
18%
0%
100

No.
1
4
0
6
11

%
9%
36%
0%
55%
100

4.

IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN

5.

The controls already in place and the further actions outlined in the Risk Register mitigate
against adverse impacts on vulnerable children.

6.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
There are no policy implications arising directly from this report. Any policy implications arising
from the existing controls and the further action required to mitigate against the risks are
reported to the Sub-Committee separately.

7.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. Any financial implications
arising from the existing controls and the further action required to mitigate against the risks are
reported to the Sub-Committee separately.

8.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
There are no personnel implications arising directly from this report. Any personal implications
arising from the existing controls and further action to mitigate against the risks are reported to
the Sub-Committee separately.

9.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. Any legal implications arising
from the existing controls and further action to mitigate against the risks are reported to the SubCommittee separately.

10. PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS
There are no procurement implications arising directly from this report. Any procurement
implications arising from the existing controls and further action to mitigate against the risks are
reported to the Sub-Committee separately.
Non-Applicable Sections:

[List non-applicable sections here]

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact
Officer)

[Title of document and date]

4

Page 6

Adult Care and Health Risk Register

1

5

6

4

2,3,8

Likelihood

3

4,7,11

2

1
1

2

5,10

9

3

4

5

Gross Risk Rating

Net Risk Rating

25

25

16

12

16

12

16

4

20

3

12

12

20

4

16

12

10

4

9

3

6

4

Impact

Risk Description

Risk Ref
1

Failure to deliver Financial Strategy

2

Failure to deliver effective Adult Social Care services

3

Failure to deliver effective Learning Disability services

4

Deprivation of Liberty

5

Recruitment and Retention - ASC

6

Transport - Children and Adults

7

Social Care Information System (SCIS)

8

Inability to deliver an effective Public Health service

9

Business Interruption / Emergency Planning

10

Data Collections

11

Failure to deliver partial implementation of Health & Social Care
Integration

Page 1 of 7

Page 7

Adult Care and Health Risk Register

Q2 2021/22

1

All

Failure to deliver Financial
Strategy

Cause(s):
- Continual reduction in Central Government funding
- Demographic changes
- Increased demand for services
- Demand led statutory services (c. 80% of operations) which can
be difficult to predict
- Increasing cost volatility due to rise of complex, high cost families
or placements requiring services.
- Potential employer liability issues for direct payment users
- Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

Financial

5

5

2

Adult Social Care

Legal

4

4

3

Learning Disability
Service

Failure to deliver effective
Learning Disability services
Failure to assess service users,
establish eligibility criteria and
carry out the review process.

Page 8

Effect(s):
- Costs associated with Legal process
- Ongoing care package costs as a result of Legal process
outcome
- Placement predictions leading to financial pressures
(cross refer Budget risk)

Legal

4

4

RISK
RATI
NG

IMPA
CT

RISK OWNER

25

5

5

25

- Delivering commissioning actions in ASC
Transformation Board programme.
- Process to ensure employer liability insurance
Director, Public
is held by direct payment users when
Health
appropriate
(Nada Lemic)

16

Care Act - Redesigned processes, including amending forms, and operational procedures
in place and Care Act compliance training
Improved Better Care Fund - Programme overseen by the Joint Assistant Director of
Commissioning and the CCG
Safeguarding - 1. Multi Agency Bromley Adult Safeguarding Board (BSAB) in place. 2.
BSAB Training programme (E Learning and Face to Face). 3. Awareness training for
vulnerable groups. 4. Care Act compliance training
Recruitment - Dedicated HR programme of support in place to recruit social workers to
front line posts
Performance Monitoring Framework - Review of Performance Management Indicators
Procurement and Contract Monitoring - Effective procurement framework and contract
monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service provision and value for
money
Re-structure of assessment and care management service. Consultation for a new
structure in the service which aims to improve outcomes for Bromley residents by creating a
more effective social care pathway. Phase 2 of this re-structure will seek to further enhance
services by developing OT, reablement and Carelink services

3

4

12

- Actions as part of LBB's Adult Social Care
Transformation Plan

Director, Adult
Services
(Kim Carey)

16

- Close monitoring of placements and eligibility criteria
- Budget monitoring and forecasting
- Regular review of medium term strategy
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Hold provider to account for poor performance
- Monitor demographics, economic indicators and develop insight into future demand
- Learning Disability Strategy agreed

3

4

12

- Learning Disability Strategy Action Plan in
development
- Actions as part of LBB's Adult Social Care
Transformation Plan

Director, Adult
Services
(Kim Carey)

Effect(s):
- Impact on life chances and outcomes for service users
- Failure to keep vulnerable adults safe from harm or abuse

Cause(s):
- Failure to identify and meet service users' needs
- Provision of service to ineligible clients
- Provision of service prior to/without appropriate
authorisation
- Failure to manage the transition process of service users
from Children's Services to Adult Services leading to
increased risk of Judicial Review
-Potential instability in social care workforce

FURTHER ACTION REQUIRED

- Budget monitoring and forecasting
- Regular review of medium term strategy
- Regular reporting to CLT and Members via the Committee reporting process
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Monitor demographics, economic indicators and develop insight into future demand
- Match financial planning to Council priorities
- Internal audit framework
- Early intervention with service users
- Constantly reviewing service operations for potential efficiencies
- Developed a series of commissioning plans, with mitigating actions, for Adult Social Care
(Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Older People) including mitigating actions
addressing financial pressures
- Growth and mitigation discussions
- Service strategies in place to mitigate growth

Effect(s):
- Lower than anticipated levels of financial resource
- Failure to achieve a balanced budget
- Failure to secure economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of use of
resources leading to a Qualified Independent Auditors' Report
- Objectives of the service not met
- Reputation is impacted
- Wider goals of the Council are not achieved

Cause(s):
- Increasing demand
- Above compounded by associated longer waiting lists
leading to deteriorating condition and ultimately increased
Failure to deliver effective Adult
service user/ carer costs
Social Care services
- Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements
The Council is unable to deliver
- Failure to comply with statutory requirements including the
an effective adult social care
Care Act
service to fulfil its statutory
- Potential instability in social care workforce
obligations including the
- Impact of COVID-19 pandemic
safeguarding of Adults

EXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

LIKE
LIHO
OD

RISK CATEGORY

RISK
RATI
NG

RISK CAUSE & EFFECT

IMPA
CT

DIVISION

GROSS RISK RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

LIKE
LIHO
OD

REF

RISK TITLE &
DESCRIPTION
(a line break - press shift & return must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK
RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

Page 2 of 7

Director, Adult
Services
Kim Carey

Adult Care and Health Risk Register

Q2 2021/22

Deprivation of Liberty
Failure to prevent unlawful
deprivation of liberty

Effect(s):
- Failure to comply with statutory requirements pursuant to
Section 4 (Section 4A) and paras 129, 180 and 182 of
Schedule A (Schedule A1) of the Mental Capacity Act 2005
(as amended to incorporate the Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards 2009)
- Failure to comply with Mental Capacity (Amendment) Act
2019 when implemented if adequate preparations are not in
place.

Legal

4

4

16

20

- Joint meetings held between HR and employment agencies to improve the quality and
speed of locum assignments
- Review of the current Recruitment and Retention package through Recruitment and
Retention Board
- Recruitment drive to convert locums to permanent staff
- Commissioning of improvements to the Council’s recruitment web site to include a video
virtual tour of the Council
- Support in effectively managing staff performance
- Provision of training measures to include targeted leadership and management training
programmes including partners and other stakeholders
- Tailored individual career plan for staff
- Bespoke training for first line managers
- Training and quality assurance of practice
- Dedicated HR worker to focus on Adult Social Care recruitment
- Senior management team in place with 76% permanent staff
- Wake up to Care programme to recruit, support the training and oversee the development
of care workers in Bromley including LBB staff.

12

- Budget monitoring and forecasting
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Travel Training Programme
- Route review and rationalisation
- Framework contracts to multiple providers via call-off contracts and mini-tender
agreements began in September 2020
- Provider support available, but not the amount that some providers have requested, which
may impact on post pandemic relations

Cause(s):
- Failure to compete with other organisations to recruit the
highest quality candidates to build an agile workforce
- Small pool of experienced adult's Social Workers

5

6

Adult Social Care

Education
Adult Social Care

Recruitment and Retention ASC
Failure to recruit and retain key
skilled staff with suitable
experience/qualifications

Effect(s):
- Failure to identify and meet service user needs
- Provision of service to ineligible clients
- Provision of service prior to/without appropriate
authorisation
- Lack of skill set results in an inability to deliver effective
adults' services to fulfil statutory safeguarding obligations,
impacting on life chances and outcomes

Page 9

Cause(s):
- Fluctuating demand year on year
- Rising numbers of children meeting criteria for transport
provision and associated increase in costs
Transport - Children and Adults - Impact of COVID-19 on the stability of the provider market
Failure to provide appropriate
home to school transport
Effect(s):
assistance for children and young - Disruption to education
people with special educational - Impact on life chances and outcomes for children and
needs and disabilities and home young people
to day activities for vulnerable - Impact on outcomes for vulnerable adults
adults

Personnel

5

4

Legal
Financial

4

3

Page 3 of 7

RISK
RATI
NG

Adult Social Care

- Core administrative function maintained and all received referrals are assessed for DoLS
- All available posts of Best Interest Assessors (4 FTE) have been filled
- Framework in place to deliver the functions of the Best Interest Assessor and the ‘Section
12’ doctors through the use of independent providers
- Weekly performance data produced on expired DoLS and followed up to ensure no gap in
DoLS cover for known service users.
- Scoping of potential deprivation of liberty cases in the community completed on CareFirst
and cases priortised accordingly. Monthly data to be produced by Performance Team and
added to Management Digest. Organisational wide planning and scoping to identify the
cases and minimise legal risks before the actual date the amended legislation will come into
force.
- On-going work with health commissioners, hospitals and care homes in planning for the
implementation of the new legislation of Liberty Protection Safeguards
- Joint working with Children's Services on data and impact of DoLS and LPS on the 16 - 17
year olds
- First draft of LPS impact assessment and costing has been completed

IMPA
CT

Cause(s):
- Risk increased due to change in legislation introducing the
Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) increasing scope.
- Any claim by service user with a community package of
care if DoL not in place
- Any claim by service user relating to a gap in DoLS
authorisation/period of unauthorised deprivation
4

EXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

LIKE
LIHO
OD

RISK CATEGORY

RISK
RATI
NG

RISK CAUSE & EFFECT

IMPA
CT

DIVISION

GROSS RISK RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

LIKE
LIHO
OD

REF

RISK TITLE &
DESCRIPTION
(a line break - press shift & return must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK
RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

2

2

4

FURTHER ACTION REQUIRED

RISK OWNER

- ASLT to be kept up to date with development
in LPS implementation.
- LPS Local Impact Assessment to be updated
as more information is available

Director, Adult
Services
(Kim Carey)

Director, Adult
Services
(Kim Carey)
1

4

3

3

Director, Human
Resources
(Charles
Obazuaye)

3

12

- Review of policy

Director,
Education
(Jared Nehra)
Director, Adult
Services
(Kim Carey)

Adult Care and Health Risk Register

Q2 2021/22

7

8

Strategy,
Performance and
Corporate
Transformation

Public Health

Cause(s):
- Failure to establish tender specification of need
- Failure to procure within budget
- Failure to retain Programme Manager and appoint team to
Social Care Information System manage implementation
- Failure to effectively implement and go live
(SCIS)
Failure to procure and implement
new system
Effect(s):
- Failure to safeguard vulnerable children and adults
- Failure to manage children and adult records effectively
- Failure to meet government and CQC expectations

Cause(s):
- Reduced budget which has led to funding cuts, reduced
service and redundancies. Withdrawal of non-statutory
services.
- Potential fluctuating medicines market
Inability to deliver an effective - Localised COVID-19 outbreaks
Public Health service
- Lack of capacity for contract tracing
The Council is unable to deliver
an effective Public Health service Effect(s):
to fulfil its statutory obligations - Increased clinical risk to patients and Bromley residents

Financial
Legal
Data

Professional,
Legal

4

4

5

4

9

Personnel

2

5

RISK
RATI
NG

IMPA
CT

RISK OWNER

Assistant
Director,
Strategy,
Performance
and Corporate
Transformation
(Naheed
Chaudhry)

20

2

2

4

16

- Working with partners including the CCG and Hospital Trust to jointly deliver Public Health
functions and mitigate impact of reduced funding
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Existing COVID-19 assistance processes to be utilised if new outbreaks occur
- Outbreak Control Plan published which provides framework for prevention and
management of local outbreaks
- Frameworks in place for response to COVID-19 outbreaks in specific settings and with
vulnerable groups
- Communication and engagement plans in place for potential COVID-19 outbreaks
- Local Contact Test and Trace programme established

3

4

12

- Plans for further integration of some functions Director, Public
and services with CCG
Health
(Nada Lemic)

4

Director, Adult
Services
(Kim Carey)
Director Public
Health
(Nada Lemic)
Director,
Strategy,
Performance &
Corporate
Transformation
(Naheed
Chaudhry)

Cause(s):
- Business Interruption could be caused by Loss of Facility
(fire, flood etc.), Staff (illness, strike) or IT (cyber attack).
- Mass fatalities or illness has a range of causes and this
risk to the council could be caused by council staff being
impacted resulting in failure to manage statutory
requirements of mass illness/fatalities scenario (e.g.
registering of deaths within timescales)

Business Interruption /
Emergency Planning
Failure to provide Council
services or statutory requirements
of mass illness/fatalities scenario Effect(s):
following a business interruption - Business interruption - failure to deliver services, loss of
customer / resident satisfaction.
or emergency planning event
- Emergency planning - failure to deliver statutory duties.

FURTHER ACTION REQUIRED

- A multi-disciplinary Programme Board in place providing governance
- Multi-disciplinary ‘SCIS’ team appointed and contracts secured.
- Award of contract for the new IT system agreed in May 2020.
- SCIS team influencing Transformation work streams to maximise digitalisation
opportunities.

- Reputational risk to council
- Gaps and potential blocks in health service between NHS
and Local Authority

Adult Social Care
Public Health
Strategy,
Performance &
Corporate
Transformation

EXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

LIKE
LIHO
OD

RISK CATEGORY

RISK
RATI
NG

RISK CAUSE & EFFECT

IMPA
CT

DIVISION

GROSS RISK RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

LIKE
LIHO
OD

REF

RISK TITLE &
DESCRIPTION
(a line break - press shift & return must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK
RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

10

Business Interruption
- Civil protection and emergency planning policies in place at corporate level overseen by
the Corporate Risk Management Group
- Business Continuity Plans in place at service level. Reviewed and updated.
- Contracts contain business continuity provision
- Communication to all staff prior to all impending industrial action, informing of any
possible service disruption as well as explaining implications of strike action for individual
staff members
Emergency Planning
- Robust plans in place, including Outbreak Plan, Flu Plan and Pandemic Flu Plan
- Alert system via the South East London Health Protection Unit (SEL HPU)
- Annual Flu vaccination programme in place
- Introduction of Humanitarian and Lead Officer (HALO) role

Page 10
Page 4 of 7

1

4

- Implementation phase development ongoing
– reflective of Covid-19 impact
- Go live on schedule for April 2022

- Business Continuity Plans reviewed annually.

Adult Care and Health Risk Register

Q2 2021/22

FURTHER ACTION REQUIRED

RISK OWNER

RISK
RATI
NG

IMPA
CT

EXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

LIKE
LIHO
OD

RISK CATEGORY

RISK
RATI
NG

RISK CAUSE & EFFECT

IMPA
CT

DIVISION

GROSS RISK RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

LIKE
LIHO
OD

REF

RISK TITLE &
DESCRIPTION
(a line break - press shift & return must be entered after the risk title)

CURRENT RISK
RATING
(See next tab for
guidance)

Cause(s):
- Business Interruption

10

11

Strategy,
Performance and
Corporate
Transformation

Adult Services

Effect(s):
- Failure to commission effectively
Data Collections
- Adverse impact on the timing and quality of decision
Failure to undertake statutory
making
statistical data collections;
including key housing and adults'
social care information, thereby
adversely affecting government
grant allocations and performance
assessments

Failure to deliver partial
implementation of Health &
Social Care Integration

Cause(s):
- Difficulty in achieving rapid change in a system as complex as health
and social care
- Rising social care costs due to ageing population and people living
longer with increasing complex needs
- Difficulties with agreeing budgets (given likely funding reductions
going forward), complex governance arrangements and workforce
planning
- Need to focus on collaborative working (cultural differences)
- Pressure for social care services to be accessible 7 days a week in
terms of our own workforce and contracts with external providers in
line with NHS priority to deliver 7 day working across the health sector
- LBB will need to contribute to a whole system review (led by BCCG)
to ensure that funding follows the patient
Effect(s):
- Failure to deliver statutory duties
- Failure to achieve our Building a Better Bromley priorities

Data and
Information

Financial
Compliance
/Regulation

3

2

3

3

9

- Schedule of statutory returns has been incorporated into the Performance and Information
team's work programme
- Specialist members of the team for each area
- Other staff trained to provide 'back up' for specialist members of the team
- Good project planning in place to co-ordinate all data collections including contributions
from other services

6

- Continued work with health partners to deliver the main transformation programmes eg
Bromley Well and the transformation of prevention
- Building on the work already delivered through S31 agreement with Oxleas and being
implemented through the Better Care Fund workstreams eg Winter Resilience work,
Transfer of Care Bureau, Integrated Care Records, Discharge to Assess. Single Point of
Access for hospital discharge implemented in April 2020
- New governance structure between LBB and BCCG with links to emerging SEL ICS
governance
- Joint Assistant Director of Integrated Commissioning in post April 2020; Integrated
Placements, Brokerage and Direct Payments agreed for implementation in 2021/22; senior
commissioner Integrated Children and Young People Commissioning appointed
- Health and care whole systems response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Page 11
Page 5 of 7

1

2

3

2

Assistant
Director,
Strategy,
Performance &
Corporate
Transformation
(Naheed
Chaudhry)

3

4

- Ongoing discussions around the developing
Integrated Care System with Bromley CCG;
taking learning from the joint health and care
response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Director, Adult
Social Care
(Kim Carey)

Likelihood

Risk Assessment Guidance

High Risk - review controls and actions every month

Almost Certain (5)

5

10

15

20

25

15+

Highly likely (4)

4

8

12

16

20

10 - 12

Likely (3)

3

6

9

12

15

5-9

Medium Risk - review controls and actions every 6 months

Unlikely (2)

2

4

6

8

10

1-4

Low Risk - review controls and actions at least annually

1

2

3

4

5

Major (4)

Catastrophic
(5)

Remote (1)

Insignificant
(1)

Minor (2)

Moderate (3)

Significant Risk - review controls and actions every 3
months

Impact

Risk Likelihood Key

Expected frequency

Score - 1

Score - 2

Score - 3

Score - 4

Score - 5

Remote

Unlikely

Possible

Likely

Definite

10 - yearly

3 - yearly

Annually

Quarterly

Monthly

Risk Impact Key
Score - 1

Score - 2

Score - 3

Score - 4

Score - 5

Insignificant

Minor

Moderate

Major

Catastrophic

Risk Impact

Compliance &
Regulation

Financial

Service Delivery

Reputation

Health & Safety

Major breach leading to
suspension or
discontinuation of
business and services

Between £50,000 and
£100,000

Between £100,000 and
£1,000,000

Between £1,000,000
and £5,000,000

More than £5,000,000

Disruption to one service
for a period of 2 weeks

Loss of one service for
between 2-4 weeks

Loss of one or more
Permanent cessation of
services for a period of
service(s)
1 month or more

Minor breach of external
regulations, not reportable

Less than £50,000

Disruption to one service
for a period of 1 week or
less

Complaints from local
Complaints from individuals stakeholders
/ small groups of residents
Low local coverage
Adverse local media
coverage

Minor incident resulting in
little harm

Breach of internal regulations
leading to disciplinary action

Significant breach of
external regulations
leading to intervention
Breach of external regulations,
or sanctions
reportable

Minor breach of internal
regulations, not reportable

Minor Injury to Council
employee or someone in
the Council’s care

Broader based general
Significant adverse
dissatisfaction with the running national media
of the council
coverage
Adverse national media
coverage

Resignation of
Director(s)

Serious Injury to Council
employee or someone in the
Council’s care

Fatality to Council
employee or someone
in the Council’s care

Persistent adverse
national media coverage
Resignation / removal of
CEX / elected Member
Multiple fatalities to
Council employees or
individuals in the
Council’s care

Page 12

INSTANT GUIDE TO RISK MANAGEMENT
The Process

Identify your risks

Risk Management is an important
element of the system of internal control.
It is based on a process designed to
identify and prioritise risks to achieving
Bromley’s policies, aims and objectives.

Brainstorming session using IE&E plans
and departmental objectives, to identify
threats and opportunities.

The Risk Management process is a
continuous cycle:
Using your objectives Identify your
risks> Assess your risks > Control your
risks> Monitor and Review your risks.
Useful definitions:
Risk Management is the identification,
analysis and overall control of those
risks which can impact on the Council’s
ability to deliver its priorities and
objectives.

Assess your risks

Control your risks

Monitor and Review your risks

We use a 5 x 5 matrix to assess risks
(see Risk Assessment Guidance tab).

Consider the controls you have in place to
mitigate or reduce the risk.

Risk is scored using a traffic light
system:

What further controls are required? Record
these as actions until they are completed.

Political
Economic
Social
Technological
Legal
Environmental

Red = High
Amber = Significant
Yellow = Medium
Green = Low

Consider the cost of any controls against the
potential benefit gained.
Your aim should be to:

PESTLE provides a simple and useful
framework for identifying and analysing
external factors which may have an impact
on your service.

AVOID a risk – stop doing the activity
Impact – how minor / severe is it when it
happens?
REDUCE a risk – put additional controls in
place
Likelihood – how likely is it / how often
does it happen?
TRANSFER a risk – by insuring or passing
the risk to a third party
The Risk Management Toolkit provides
detailed guidance on how to score these. TAKE a risk – monitor to ensure the impact
and likelihood do not change
Some of these assessments can be
based on past experience. In other cases Risk of service failure can be minimised by
you will need to take a view.
ensuring effective Business Continuity

Useful analytical tools:

Strengths
Weaknesses
Opportunities
Threats

There are two risk variables that make
up the overall risk rating:

What is our Risk Appetite? An element of
risk is unavoidable or we would never do
anything!

Page 13

Risk is the chance of something
happening which will have an impact on
objectives.
Using the PESTLE output SWOT is a
technique that can help a service to focus
The message is that if you don’t manage on areas for improvement and opportunities
your risks then you are unlikely to
Plans are in place. For guidance contact
that could be pursued.
We measure both gross risk (before any Laurie Grasty x4764..
achieve your objectives
controls are taken into account) and net
Remember if it can go wrong it will go
or residual risk.
wrong.

Risks should be reviewed at least
annually and whenever your business
plans change.
Remember risks evolve and change over
time. Are the controls still effective?

Manage threats that may hinder delivery
of priorities and maximise opportunities
that will help to deliver them.
The Bromley Risk Register is maintained
centrally by Audit and includes details of
the risks, risk owners, controls and
actions. Contact James Newell x4842.
Further guidance on Risk Management
can be found in the Managers’ Toolkit on
onebromley. This also provides links to
the Risk Management Strategy, Risk
Management Toolkit and Risk Register.
The site also provides a link to the Health
and Safety Unit who carry out H&S risk
assessments. For guidance contact the
Corporate Safety Advisor Charlotte Faint
x7584.

This page is left intentionally blank

Information Item 2
Briefing ACH21-046

London Borough of Bromley
PART 1 – PUBLIC
Briefing for Adult Care and Health
Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee
23 November 2021

ADULT SOCIAL CARE LOCAL ACCOUNT 2020/21
Contact Officer:

Denise Mantell, Strategy Officer (Adults Social Care and Housing)
Tel: 020 8313 4113 Email: denise.mantell@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer:

Kim Carey, Interim Director, Adult Social Care

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report provides Members with the Adult Social Care Local Account for 2020/21 (see
Appendix A). The Local Account provides an overview of how we have supported our
residents to maximise their wellbeing and independence in the community during 2020/21,
and what we plan to do in the upcoming year (2021/22).

2.

THE BRIEFING

2.1

In 2011, the Department of Health recommended that all Local Authorities’ Adult Social Care
directorates publish an annual Local Account. This demonstrates how the Local Authority has
performed in Adult Social Care, and is the way in which progress can be communicated to
the wider community.

2.2

The work outlined in this report has supported people to have choice and control, and to
maximise their wellbeing and independence in their local community.

2.3

The Local Account recognises significant successes for Adult Social Care in 2020/21. Adult
Care and Health PDS Committee, Health and Wellbeing Board and the Council’s Executive
have received reports on areas covered within this briefing throughout the year.

2.4

There are also areas for development which are reflected in the Adult Care and Health
Portfolio Plan for 2018 to 2022 under the following priorities.





Safeguarding – Ensure effective arrangements are in place to respond to safeguarding
risks and prevent the escalation of issues.
Life Chances, Resilience and Wellbeing – Ensure access to good, education and
services. This will support health and wellbeing and enable residents to achieve their
potential.
Integrated Health and Social Care – Work effectively with health agencies to provide the
right specialise, holistic help and support that our residents need.
Ensuring Efficiency and Effectiveness – Deliver high quality services that make a positive
difference to people’s lives.

Page 15

This page is left intentionally blank

Bromley
Local
Account
Adult Social
Care Services
2020 - 2021
Page 17

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Contents
Welcome to our Local Account

3

How to contact us

5

More advice and support

6

Adult Social Care

7

What we spent in 2020-2021

9

What we are doing in 2021-2022

10

The Better Care Fund (BCF) and Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)

12

Transforming Adult Social Care

15

Our Response to COVID-19

17

Dementia

19

People with Mental Health Needs

20

People with Learning Disabilities

22

Support for Carers

24

Protecting Adults who may be at Risk

26

Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board

28

Your voice heard

31

How to make a complaint or share a compliment

32

Key Facts

33

Glossary

34

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 18

2

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Welcome to our
Local Account
Bromley’s Local Account of
Adult Social Care provides an
overview of how we have
supported our residents to
maximise their wellbeing and
independence in the
community during 2020/21
and what we plan to do
in the upcoming year.
This includes:
● How much we spent on Adult
Social Care
● Who we supported and the
ways we did so
● Achievements in 2020/21
● What we are doing in 2021/22

In Adult Social Care, our focus is to provide information,
advice, guidance and support to individuals and to their
families to promote wellbeing and prevent, reduce or delay
the need for higher levels of care and support.
www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 19

3

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

With an increasing demand for public services from an ageing population and those
with increasingly complex needs, we understand that the role of our department
cannot always be as a service provider, crisis responder and regulation enforcer, but
instead must also support existing networks to enable people to act for themselves.
During 2020/21, despite the pandemic, we have continued to make progress in
improving support for our residents. We have:
● Continued to support local residents to prevent situations escalating into a crisis
and improve their health, wellbeing and independence through the Bromley Well
Service. 10,639 referrals resulted in 3,414 adults receiving further support
in 2020/21.
● Continued to improve integrated working around the hospital discharge process
through the Single Point of Access to facilitate discharge during the COVID-19
pandemic. This model has been refined and mainstreamed as the MJ Award winning
ONE Bromley Discharge Partnership.
● Continued to review and improve the user journey through our Adult Social Care
system through service redesign, by streamlining processes and improving the
experience of residents through training and quality assurance to lead to improved
outcomes for individuals which promote independence and choice.
During 2020/21 we continued to deliver on our Roadmap to Excellence for Adult
Social Care through the Transforming Adult Social Care programme with the aim of
modernising our social care offer based upon a strengths-based model of support.
We are focussing on the way we support residents to receive the right level and type
of support, at the right time, to maximise their independence and ensure they have
choice and control over their support.
We have also responded to the COVID-19 pandemic and worked with our partners
in health as well as the private and voluntary sectors to ensure that our vulnerable
residents continued to receive the support they needed during this time.

Kim Carey,
Interim Director of Adult Social Care

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 20

4

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

How to contact us
Here is all the information
you need if you want to get in
touch with us. We value
your comments, compliments
and suggestions to help us
provide better services.

Write to us:
Adult Social Care,
Civic Centre,
Stockwell Close,
Bromley,
BR1 3UH
Call us:
020 8461 7777

Email us:
adult.early.intervention@bromley.gov.uk

Visit:
www.bromley.gov.uk

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 21

5

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

More advice
and support
There is a range of support and advice
available across the borough.

Bromley – Your Guide
to Independent Living,
Support and Care
Services
2021-2022

Bromley Well
Bromley Well is a Single Point of
Access to support health, wellbeing
and independence, funded by the
Council and local health services.

The Guide has been produced by the
Council to provide valuable information
to help you access information
and support to stay well, remain
independent and make the right
choices about your care needs.

It supports people who may be at risk
of crisis in their lives but who could,
with appropriate help, maintain both
their emotional and physical health
and wellbeing and remain living
independently.

Get a free copy by emailing

Freephone: 0808 278 7898
Email: spa@bromleywell.org.uk
Visit: www.bromleywell.org.uk

health.partnership@bromley.gov.uk
or visit www.bromley.gov.uk/
independentlivingguide

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 22

6

Adult Social Care Services

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care

m

b

s
er

in 2

Adult Social Care services include
making an assessment of your needs
and providing services either directly to
you, through a commissioned provider
or the allocation of funds, called a direct
payment, to enable you to purchase your
own care and support. The range of
services include residential care, home
care, personal assistants, day activities
as well as aids and adaptations.

1,738

020/21

long-term
users of Adult
Social Care

Adult Social C

a re

in

nu

We provide care and support
for adults who need extra
help to manage their lives
and be independent –
including older people, people
with a disability or long-term
illness, people with mental
ill-health and carers.

are aged

4,387

between 18-64
years old

people were
receiving
an ongoing
long-term
service

2,649

long-term users
of Adult Social
Care are aged
over 65

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 23

7

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Adult Social Care in numbers
in 2019/2020

385

people (both old
and new service
users) received
Nursing Care

809

people (both old
and new service
users) received
Residential Care

527

people took a
Direct Payment

2,501

unpaid carers
had their needs
assessed.

246

people were invited
to have a NHS
Health Check*.

128

had a NHS
Health Check*

3,336

people received
home care support
to enable them to
stay in their home.

1,227

households
had a Housing
Assessment
completed.

*This programme was severely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic
therefore this year’s numbers were significantly reduced.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 24

8

Adult Social Care Services

Local Account 2020 - 2021

What we spent
in 2020 - 2021
At a time when the Council has 2020-2021 expenditure
to continue making challenging ● £ 20,905,000
Assessment and Care Management
decisions due to a reduction
(Complex care, long-term care)
●£
 83,000
in central funding as well as
Direct Service (Reablement, CareLink)
increasing demand for public
●£
 37,198,000
Learning Disabilities
services from an ageing
●£
 7,734,000
population and those with
Mental Health
increasingly complex needs, it
●£
 1,505,000
Quality Assurance and Safeguarding
is vital that we allocate those
●£
 22,835,000
reduced resources effectively
Better Care Fund
●£
 10,269,000
to ensure our most vulnerable
Improved Better Care Fund
residents have access to the
●£
 2,019,000
information and support that
Commissioning
they require at the earliest
possible opportunity.
Assessment and Care Management
Direct Services
Learning Disabilities
Mental Health
Quality Assurance and Safeguarding

Better Care Fund
Improved Better Care Fund
Commissioning

0

50

x £100,000

www.bromley.gov.uk

10

0

15

0

20

0

25

0

30

Page 25

0

35

0

40

0

9

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

What we are doing
in 2021 - 2022
The Adult Care and Health Strategic
Priorities for 2018-2022 are:
P
 riority: Safeguarding –
Safeguarding adults is everyone’s
business. By ensuring that effective
arrangements are in place to respond
to safeguarding risks we will ensure
adults are safe and less likely to
require statutory intervention.
P
 riority: Life Chances, Resilience
and Wellbeing – Every adult should
have access to education, training
and services which support their
health and wellbeing and enable their
potential. Our residents should have
access to early help which is vital
to prevent problems getting worse
including the prevention of loneliness
and social isolation.

www.bromley.gov.uk

P
 riority: Integrated Health and
Social Care – Working effectively
with health agencies is essential to
provide the right specialist, holistic
help and support that our residents
need. Where appropriate we will
jointly plan, commission and
deliver services.
P
 riority: Ensuring Efficiency
and Effectiveness – We remain
committed to delivering high quality
services that make a positive
difference to people’s lives.

Page 26

10

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

● Continuing to promote the use of
direct payments as a model of service
delivery with changes to our care
management practice to facilitate this.
● Developing an Integrated Commissioning
Team to commission jointly with SEL
CCG all community-based and out of
hospital care and support services.
● Commissioning a new domiciliary care
service to support more residents to
continue to live at home.
● Social care and health commissioners
continuing to work with providers of
services to ensure the safe and speedy
Areas of focus, in support of
these priority statements, include:
● Improving awareness of adult
safeguarding throughout Bromley.
● Working with partners in education,
health and housing to improve the
life chances of people as they reach
adulthood so they can continue to
live as independently as possible in
the community.
● Recommissioning early intervention and
preventative health and
wellbeing services.
● Continuing to implement our
Transforming Adult Social Care
programme to further modernise our
social care offer based upon a strengths
and outcomes-based model of support.
● Working with residents to maintain or
regain their independence and prevent
their admission to hospital.

www.bromley.gov.uk

discharge of patients from hospital to
achieve the best possible outcomes.
● Delivering on our cross-cutting health
and social care commissioning
Learning Disability Strategy.
● Developing a new Care
Homes Strategy.

If you are interested in
viewing Bromley’s Adult
Care and Health Portfolio
Plan for 2018 to 2022,
please visit:
https://www.bromley.gov.uk/
downloads/download/209/
portfolio_plans

Page 27

11

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

The Better Care Fund
(BCF) and Improved
Better Care Fund (iBCF)
The Better Care Fund (BCF)
grant is ring-fenced for the
purpose of pooling budgets
and integrating health
and social care services
between Bromley Clinical
Commissioning Group (BCCG)
and the Local Authority.
The spending plan for the
BCF must be jointly agreed
by Bromley and BCCG.

The Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)
was added to the Better Care Fund from
2017/18 which is paid directly to the
Council to spend on Adult Social Care.
The programme funded by these grants
continues to be aligned with the model
of providing services with funding to
underpin the wider objectives to move
care from hospital into the community.

www.bromley.gov.uk

The programme includes the
following services:
●R
 eablement – providing additional
capacity to help people regain the skills
they need to live independently after
time in hospital or ill-health
● Intermediate Care – to provide extra
services to help people to leave
hospital, and prevent their admission,
in a timely manner
●W
 inter Pressures – to prevent
admission to and support timely
discharge from hospital during the winter
to relieve pressure on hospital beds
●H
 ealth Support to Extra Care Housing
& Care Homes – providing additional
support to people living in these locations
●D
 ementia Hub – to increase diagnosis
and universal post diagnosis support
● Community Equipment – to support
discharge from hospital
●S
 elf-Management & Early Intervention
(Bromley Well) – to focus on
prevention and self-management of
people with long term conditions and
avert avoidable admissions and long
term care packages.

Page 28

12

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Achievements include:
● Self-Management and Early
Intervention - The Bromley Well Service
provides a single point of access for
local people to prevent them falling
into a crisis and improve their health,
wellbeing and independence. During
2020/21 many of its services were held
virtually to provide 1:1 support and group
activities which also benefited those
experiencing social isolation. It received
10,639 referrals in total of which 7,225
came through the Single Point of Access
and 3,414 required further support
through specialist pathways.
●S
 upport for Integrated Care Networks
(ICNs) – The care is delivered by a

multi-disciplinary team designed
to help patients with the most
complex care needs to stay well,
remain independent and stay out of
hospital where possible. ICNs have
continued to have a positive impact
in enabling people to stay at home
and facilitated multi-department
team interventions to enable more
joined up care for residents.
●D
 ementia Support Service (Dementia
Hub) – This service has established
a clear pathway for people and their
carers following a diagnosis providing
a one stop shop for those needing
information advice and guidance as
well as practical support.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 29

13

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

● Delayed Transfers of Care (DToCs)–
Bromley’s action plan continues
to ensure a reduction in delays to
patients being discharged from
hospital. Improved integrated working
has enhanced the hospital discharge
process and continues to have a
positive impact on local and out-ofborough discharge procedure and
process and hence enhance both
the quality of patient experience at
discharge and anticipated performance.
The measurement of DToCs nationally
has been paused since February 2020
but Bromley continues to monitor
performance and work as a system to
address any discharge issues.

● Discharge to Assess – The extended
pilot continues to improve outcomes for
patients who have just been discharged
from hospital.
●R
 eablement – Based on local data,
the percentage of people still at home
91 days after discharge is 90.7% as of
the end of March 2021. Bromley has
exceeded its planned target of 85%-90%.
●H
 ealth Support in Care Homes
and Extra Care Housing – The
establishment of the Bromleag Care
Practice offering a dedicated GP
service to care home residents. During
the COVID-19 pandemic, the practice
succeeded in vaccinating 100% of
eligible Bromley care home residents.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 30

14

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Transforming
Adult Social Care
The challenges facing all
local authorities necessitate
that in Bromley we do things
differently; building on the
assets and strengths of
individuals, families and our
communities in Bromley and
the delivery of local communitybased intervention. We must
also examine opportunities
for delivering integrated and
place-based services in strategic
partnership with other agencies.
Having previously evaluated our internal
processes and reviewed how we work with
our partners so that individuals and families
receive the support they need, we identified
four areas of focus. The following work
streams continued to be developed during
2020/21 and into 2021/22.
Supporting people to remain active
and independent in their communities
● Commissioning colleagues have led a review of
our partnership with Bromley Well to enhance
www.bromley.gov.uk

work on early intervention and prevention and
prepare for retendering this service.
● Delivery of commissioning priorities based
upon strategic analysis which sits alongside
our Ageing Well in Bromley, Learning
Disability and Integrated Mental Health
and Emotional Wellbeing Strategies has
begun with a renewed focus on promoting
independence and wellbeing.
Working with the NHS
● Previous learning from the discharge
process enabled the implementation
of the new Single Point of Access
arrangements to manage hospital
discharge to either residential care or at
home with an appropriate level of support
during the pandemic. This model has been
further developed and mainstreamed as the
ONE Bromley Discharge Partnership during
2021. With our NHS and voluntary sector
partners we won the national MJ Award for
integrated health and care services.
● Reviewing social care practice and
processes in relation to joint funding,
continuing healthcare and Section 117
funding for people with mental ill-health.
Specialist practice resources will be
developed to respond to the findings of
the review.

Page 31

15

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Strengths and Outcomes-Based Practice
● A strengths and outcomes-based approach
practice framework was developed in
conjunction with the Social Care Institute
for Excellence (SCIE) and launched in
December 2020. This will assist social care
staff to work in new ways that enable the
wellbeing of individuals and that builds
upon their strengths and existing support
to achieve their independence in ways that
meet their needs.
● Work has been undertaken with service
users, carers and providers to develop new
models of delivery for domiciliary care and
supported living which will be based on the
strengths and outcomes-based approach.
● New programmes are under way to make
www.bromley.gov.uk

Adult Social Care Services

better use of assistive technology and
to support young people with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities prepare
for adulthood.
Managing and Developing
the Market
● Local authorities have the responsibility
to encourage providers to develop
services that support vulnerable
residents. New priorities have been
identified to help deliver the Ageing
Well in Bromley, Learning Disability and
Integrated Mental Health and Emotional
Wellbeing Strategies.
● A new Care Homes Strategy is being
developed to support the market during
the recovery from the pandemic.

Page 32

16

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Our response
to COVID-19
Towards the end of 2019/20,
the growing COVID-19
crisis, and the subsequent
announcement of lockdown
on 23 March 2020, impacted
on Adult Social Care as care
management and health
and social care providers
sought to support vulnerable
residents.
Working in partnership with health
commissioners and providers in the statutory,
private and voluntary sectors, plans for joint
working were accelerated, assessments and
services were provided by non-face to face
means if possible and front-line professionals
were supported to deliver health and personal
care in the safest way possible.
These adjustments continued throughout
2020/21 and into 2021/22 during the
subsequent waves of the pandemic.

www.bromley.gov.uk

The Council also brought together a team
of officers and volunteers to support those
residents who were shielding as they were
identified as clinically extremely vulnerable
to coronavirus.

Achievements
●A
 dult Social Care continued to operate
without using the Care Act Easements
permitted by legislation during the
pandemic meaning that assessments
and reviews continued as normal.

Page 33

17

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

●F
 inancial support was given to providers
most severely impacted at the beginning
of the pandemic.
●P
 roviders were given advice and support
in safe ways of working by Public Health
professionals.
●3
 ,042 residents were supported in being
safely discharged from the Princess Royal
University Hospital.
●D
 irect payments were promoted as a means
to provide support within the home.
● Care homes, providers of domiciliary care
and extra care housing as well as
learning disability and mental health
services were supported to access
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) until
the national portal was established
for providers registered with the CQC.
By the end of September 2021 just

under 2 million items of PPE equipment
were issued by the Council to these
services when needed.
● Bromley Council has also worked with
partners in health as well as residents
with direct payments and unpaid carers to
ensure they had PPE equipment as required.
●4
 ,618 local residents signed up as
volunteers to support vulnerable residents.
●1
 ,950 vulnerable residents were supported
by volunteers.
●2
 2,279 residents were identified as
clinically extremely vulnerable to
COVID-19 during the pandemic and were
supported with information and advice.
●1
 ,046 shielding residents were assisted

www.bromley.gov.uk

directly with advice, support to access food
and essential supplies, medication deliveries
or support to overcome social isolation.

Page 34

18

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Dementia
The majority of older people
in Bromley live independent,
healthy and fulfilling lives
without needing help from
the Council.

Dementia Hub Contact Information:
If you, or someone you care for,
has been diagnosed with dementia
and feel you could benefit from
assistance from the Bromley Dementia
Support Hub, please contact the Hub
on 020 3328 0366 or visit www.
bromleydementiasupporthub.org.uk

Achievements in 2020-2021
● The Dementia Support Service (Dementia
Hub) continued to provide a clear pathway
for people and their carers immediately
following diagnosis. Support continued
both in person and virtually such as the
Memory Lane Dementia Café, singing
groups, exercise, peer support groups
and carers support.
● The Dementia Support Service continued
to deliver online courses for residents in
the borough who may come into contact
with people with dementia, including
‘Understanding Dementia’ and sessions
on ‘Behaviours we find Challenging’ and
‘Successful Communication’.
To book onto the courses email:
training@mindcare.org.uk.

In 2021-2022

Key Statistics in 2020-2021
● It is estimated that there are around 4,500
adults with dementia in Bromley. 2,398
individuals had a diagnosis of dementia
in 2019/20.
● 684 people of all ages had a primary
support reason of memory and cognition
in 2020/21, which compares with 659
in 2019/20.
www.bromley.gov.uk

● The Dementia Support Hub will continue
to provide support both virtually and face
to face with activities being offered in
a variety of formats to reach as many
residents as possible.
● We will review services for people who
have been diagnosed with dementia in
order to ensure best practice is embedded
in service delivery.

Page 35

19

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

People with Mental
Health Needs
The Council has
Key Statistics in 2020-2021
● Just under 3,000 individuals have a
commissioned Oxleas NHS
severe mental illness.
Foundation Trust to provide
● 10.8% of Bromley residents aged 18
secondary mental health
and over were recorded as having
services in the borough. There depression in 2020/21.
● Bromley has the sixth highest level of
are seconded social workers
recorded depression in London
from the Council working
in 2020/21.
● 1,178 individuals received mental health
with Oxleas, integrated
support from Bromley Well mental
within the multi-disciplinary
health services.
teams to deliver our Care Act ● During 2020/21 we carried out Mental
Health Act Assessments of 3,821 people.
responsibilities.
Oxleas provide a mental health service for
working age adults (18-65) and an Older
Adults (65+) Service.

The Community Mental
Health Teams for working
age adults are based at:
Bromley East
1-6, Carlton Parade,
Orpington, Kent,
BR6 0JB
01689 892300

www.bromley.gov.uk

Bromley West
First Floor, Beckenham
Beacon, 379 Croydon
Road, Beckenham,
BR3 3QL
020 8659 2151

Page 36

20

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Achievements in
2020-2021
● We have published our Joint LBB and CCG
Mental Health Strategy and Action Plan.
The Action Plan focuses on: prevention;
early intervention; multidisciplinary approach
to treatment; complex and long-term
support; recovery and rehabilitation, and
integrated delivery.
● In partnership with Bromley Well we
designed a new COVID-19 wellbeing support
service to support clients to manage mental

www.bromley.gov.uk

Adult Social Care Services

health issues triggered or perpetuated by
the virus/pandemic. The service aimed to
improve wellbeing, resilience, lifestyle and
social health.

In 2021-2022
● We will begin the transformation of
community-based mental health services
through the Mental Health and Emotional
Wellbeing Hub made up of multidisciplinary
psychology and welfare professionals from
Oxleas NHS Trust and MIND.

Page 37

21

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

People with
Learning Disabilities
The Learning Disability Service
undertakes assessments and
provides support services for
people within Bromley who
present as potentially having
a learning disability or have a
diagnosed learning disability.
This includes young people
with learning disabilities who
are transitioning to adulthood.

The Community Learning
Disability Team is based at:
London Borough of Bromley,
2nd Floor, Stockwell Building,
Civic Centre, Stockwell
Close, Bromley,
BR1 3UH
020 8464 3333

www.bromley.gov.uk

Key Statistics in 2020-2021
● Our borough is home to over 6,000 adults
with a learning disability.
● The population of adults with learning
disabilities aged 18-64 years is expected to
grow by 1.8% and that of those aged 65+ by
5% over the next five years.

Achievements in 2020-2021
● 324 people with learning disabilities were
supported through Supported Living
compared with 301 in 2019/20.
● 185 people with learning disabilities were
supported through a direct payment.
● 452 people with learning disabilities were
living on their own or with their family. This
is 71% of the 638 people with learning
disabilities who receive services from
Bromley Council.
● 563 people with a learning disability received
support from Bromley Well’s Learning Disability
service, of whom 382 received emotional
support either face to face or by phone.
● The Council and CCG agreed a Joint Learning
Disability Strategy for Bromley for 2020
onwards. This brings together joint service

Page 38

22

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

redesign and commissioning intentions with
an emphasis on co-produced outcomes with
people with a learning disability and other
stakeholders. The strategy is for people with
a learning disability aged 14+.
● The new Learning Disability Partnership
Board is overseeing the implementation
of the strategy and brings together service
users, parents/carers and key stakeholders
across a wide range of services.
● New contracts have been awarded
to modernise day services, respite
and supported living through a major
transformation to better reflect the needs
and aspirations of users with an emphasis
upon community-based support.
● The Bromley Well service continued to offer
a range of interventions to clients including
provision of online learning platforms.

In 2021/2022

www.bromley.gov.uk

● We will deliver a fully recommissioned
buildings-based day service for those with
complex needs.
● We will tender further supported living
contracts.
● We will develop a number of day service
hubs across the Borough.
● We will commence a review of
commissioned respite services, in advance
of a tender.
● We will review employment opportunities
and pathways in partnership with
colleagues in Children’s Services, the
business community and other key
stakeholders.

Page 39

23

Adult Social Care Services

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Support for Carers
A carer is a person who
provides unpaid support to
a partner, family member,
friend or neighbour who is
ill, struggling or disabled and
could not manage without
this help. This is distinct from
a care worker who is paid to
support people.
Bromley Well is a Single Point of Access to
support health, wellbeing and
independence which is funded by the
Council and local health services. It provides
a range of support for unpaid carers to
enable them to maintain their caring role.

Bromley Well contact
Call: 0808 278 7898
Email: spa@bromleywell.org.uk

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 40

24

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Key Statistics in 2020-2021

● Bromley Well continued to provide support
to carers’ wellbeing during the COVID-19
pandemic. This included: a new virtual drop-in
service to provide confidential support by a
mental health carers’ support adviser for both
new and existing carers; a four week Cognitive
Behavioural Therapy programme for carers
during COVID-19 delivered by a psychological
welfare practitioner and a new bulletin with
information to support carers’ wellbeing. A
‘Coping with Caring during COVID’ booklet
was also produced for carers.

● During 2020/21 2,501 carers were assessed
to determine their support needs (this
includes assessments carried out separately
or with the person they care for).

Achievements in 2020-2021

● During 2020/21 573 individuals were referred
to the Bromley Well Carers Service. In total
2,104 carers were supported in some way, of
whom 1,448 received emotional support either
face to face or by phone.
In 2021-2022
● Bromley Well provides a service for
● Bromley Well will continue to deliver services
young carers aged 4-19 to manage caring
both virtually and in person.
relationships whilst enjoying their childhood. In
2020/21 107 young carers were referred. 261 ● Bromley Well continues to work with carers to
develop their carers’ offer and
young carers attended leisure activities, 224
with Bromley Council to support carers
young carers attended training sessions, and
accessing services.
107 young carers received emotional support.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 41

25

Adult Social Care Services

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Protecting adults
who may be at risk
The residents of Bromley
should be able to live with
their rights protected, in
safety, free from abuse and
the fear of abuse.
Adult Social Care is responsible for
ensuring the safety of vulnerable adults
who are experiencing, or at risk of, abuse
or neglect. Under the principles of Making
Safeguarding Personal work is undertaken
with individuals as well as families, friends
and carers if appropriate, to determine
whether actions need to be taken to
prevent or stop abuse or neglect.
Concerned about the safety
of an adult?
Call our Adult Early Intervention Service
on 020 8461 7777, email
adult.early.intervention@bromley.gov.uk
or report your concerns about an adult at risk
by completing our referral form at
www.bromley.gov.uk/AdultAtRiskReport

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 42

26

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Key Statistics in 2020-2021
● 1,110 safeguarding concerns generated
● 530 safeguarding enquiries started
● 812 Concluded Enquiries
● 1,377 Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguarding (DoLS) applications
responded to.

Achievements in 2020-2021
● During the COVID-19 pandemic a Care Home
Operational Group was established to review
any challenges to residents’ safety. Daily
meetings were held with representatives
from Adult Social Care, Public Health, health
providers, commissioners and GPs.
● The Adult Services Principal Social Worker
post was appointed to lead on, oversee and
develop excellent social work practice.
● The Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board
Multi-Agency Training Programme delivered
its classroom-based training in webinar

www.bromley.gov.uk

Adult Social Care Services

format during the COVID-19 pandemic.
● We continued to provide support and
supervision to our Independent Best Interest
Assessors and Section 12 doctors to
ensure DoLS assessments meet the
required standard.
● Timely DoLS assessments continued
during the pandemic with the use of
remote assessments.

In 2021-2022
● We are continuing to deliver a training
programme for our work force in keeping
people safe.
● We have resumed face to face assessments
for DoLS but also using virtual assessments
where that is needed to minimise risk.
● We are preparing for changes in legislation
resulting in moving from Deprivation
of Liberty Safeguards to Liberty
Protection Safeguards.

Page 43

27

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Bromley Safeguarding
Adults Board
The Bromley Safeguarding
Adults Board oversees adult
safeguarding arrangements
in the borough and assures
itself that organisations are
fulfilling their duties under the
Care Act. It ensures that there
is a collaborative approach to
safeguarding to help, prevent,
abuse and neglect.
The Board has three
statutory functions:
● Develop and publish a strategic
plan which outlines how the Board
will meet their objectives and how
partner agencies will help the Board
achieve this.
● Publish an annual report detailing the
effectiveness of the Board’s work.
● Commission safeguarding adults
reviews, where an individual in the
borough has died or been seriously
harmed as a result of abuse
or neglect.
www.bromley.gov.uk

Bromley Safeguarding
Adults Board (BSAB)
For more information visit
www.bromleysafeguardingadults.org

Page 44

28

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Achievements in 2020-2021

website includes information about the
Board’s key thematic priorities, sharing
information on specific safeguarding
topics as well as signposting the
community to support services locally
and nationally. Professionals are also
able to access key local and regional
policies and procedures.
● Safeguarding Awareness promotional
material was developed in digital format
and shared with wider partners for
distribution.
● The 2020 annual Safeguarding
Awareness week covered a range of
topics that took into consideration the
impact that COVID-19 had on the
subject matter.

● In 2020/21 the Board has focussed on
its key priorities of self-neglect, hoarding,
domestic abuse and fire safety in
homes as well as how to ensure the
work of the Board was continued during
the pandemic.
● A Complex Case pathway was developed
together with colleagues in Lambeth and
Southwark. This was influenced by the
learning from the Board’s first SAR
where self-neglect was the key theme of
its evaluation.
● The Board developed and published its
first standalone website in June 2020.
This coincided with the launch of its first
social media presence on Twitter. The
www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 45

29

Local Account 2020 - 2021

In 2021-2022:
●T
 he BSAB will schedule an annual
challenge event and will use the panLondon Safeguarding Adults Partnership
Audit Tool (SAPAT) to share individual
agency information and experience on
areas related to adult safeguarding.
●T
 he BSAB will explore methods of
engaging service users, linking in with
other Safeguarding Adult Boards across
London to gain an understanding of the
wider service user experience.
●T
 he Board’s website will be the
main source of information on Adult
Safeguarding for service users,
volunteers, and professionals. This
will host updated Board policies &
procedures and will promote existing &
new support services.
www.bromley.gov.uk

Adult Social Care Services

●W
 orking closely with the Bromley
Safeguarding Children’s Partnership,
Bromley Health and Wellbeing Board
and the Bromley Safer Partnership, the
BSAB will map the work and priorities
of each Board to further strengthen the
synergy across Boards.
●T
 he BSAB will continue to deliver a
training programme in webinar format
and via online ME Learning, providing
accessibility for professionals and
volunteers who work with vulnerable
adults within Bromley.
●T
 he Board’s communications
subgroup will continue developing
Safeguarding Awareness resources,
with materials also developed in
an easy-read format to reach a
wider audience.

Page 46

30

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Your voice heard
Adult Social Care has a long
and successful history of
resident involvement. We
have a range of systems
and processes that give our
residents and service users the
power to share their thoughts.
We want to truly put the voice of our
residents and service users at the heart
of our decisions as part of our User
Voice Framework.
Some of our formal routes of gathering
views and experiences from residents who
use our services or provide unpaid care
to support family and friends were
postponed due to the pandemic.
However, we continued to use previous
engagement with residents to help
re-shape services for those with learning
disabilities and those who use domiciliary
care services.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 47

31

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

How to make a
complaint or share
a compliment
The majority of Adult
Social Care Complaints are
considered on a statutory
basis and handled through
the Council’s Corporate
Complaints Procedure.
We aim to offer a helpful and efficient
service, but we recognise that
sometimes things can go wrong. We aim
to put mistakes right quickly and we will
not treat anybody unfavourably if they
make a complaint about us. You have the
right to tell us if something is wrong. We
also value your comments because what
you tell us about our services helps us to
improve them and plan for the future. We
also like to hear if you are pleased with
the service you receive; knowing when
we are doing well can be as informative
as knowing when things go wrong.

You can make a compliment or
complaint to the London Borough
of Bromley in the following ways:
Online at: www.bromley.gov.uk/complaints
Call: 020 8461 7706
Email: complaints@bromley.gov.uk

Adult Social Care was the subject of a
significant 51% reduction in complaints
from 2019/20 to 2020/21.
www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 48

32

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Key facts
Mid-2020 Population Estimates for the
London Borough of Bromley = 332,752
Population by age: Bromley

30000
25000
20000
15000
10000
5000
0
yrs
0-4

+
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
rs
yrs
4y
9y
4y
9y
4y
9y
4y
9y
4y
9y
4y
9y
4y
4y
9y 0yrs
9y
1
1
2
2
3
3
4
4
5
5
6
6
7
8
8
7
5-9
9
10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60
65
70
80
85
75

Source: MYE 2: Population Estimates: Persons by Single Year of
Age and Sex for Local Authorities in the UK, mid-2020.

Ethnicity White, Mixed, Asian, Black, Other

Bromley

London

England

White

82.4%

57.1%

83.9%

Mixed/ Multiple Ethnic Groups

4.5%

6.1%

2.8%

Asian/ Asian British

5.4%

19.1%

8.4%

Black African/ Caribbean/ Black British

6.7%

14.1%

3.8%

Other Ethnic Groups

1.0%

3.6%

1.1%

ONS 2020 Population denominators by broad ethnic group and for White British,
local authorities in England and Wales: 2011 to 2019: Local Authority Denominators 2019

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 49

33

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Glossary
A
Adult Social Care
Care and support for adults who need
extra help to manage their lives and be
independent – including older people,
people with a disability or long-term illness,
people with mental health problems,
and carers. Adult Social Care includes
assessment of your needs, provision of
services or allocation of funds to enable
you to purchase your own care and support.
It includes residential care, home care,
personal assistants, day services, the
provision of aids and adaptations and
personal budgets.

C
Care Act 2014
A law passed in England in 2014
that sets out what care and support you are
entitled to and what local councils have to
do. According to the law, councils have to
consider your wellbeing, assess your needs
and help you get independent financial
advice on paying for care and support.

Carer
A person who provides unpaid support to a
partner, family member, friend or neighbour
www.bromley.gov.uk

who is ill, struggling or disabled and could not
manage without this help. This is distinct from
a care worker, who is paid to support people.

Carer’s Assessment
If you are an unpaid carer for a family member
or friend, you have the right to discuss with your
local council what your own needs are, separate
to the needs of the person you care for.

Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG)
A group of GP practices in a particular area
that work together to plan and design health
services in that area. Each CCG is given a
budget from NHS England to spend
on a wide range of services that include
hospital care, rehabilitation and communitybased. On 1 April 2020, Bromley CCG
joined with the other five CCGs in South
East London to form the NHS South East
London Clinical Commissioning Group.
Each borough has a Board with delegated
executive powers to commission certain
health services within the borough in
conjunction with the local authority.

Co-production
When you as an individual are involved as an
equal partner in designing the support and
services you receive.

Page 50

34

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Glossary (continued)
D
Delayed Discharge
When you are well enough to leave
hospital after an illness or accident, but
you have to stay there while the care you
need in your own home or in another
place is arranged.

Delayed Transfer of Care
(DToC)
Similar to delayed discharge. When
you are ready to move from hospital to
another type of care, but the care
you need is not yet available, meaning
that you spend longer in hospital than
medically necessary.

Direct Payments
Money that is paid to you (or
someone acting on your behalf) on a
regular basis by your local council so
you can arrange your own support,
instead of receiving social care services
arranged by the council. Direct payments
are available to people who have been
assessed as being eligible for councilfunded social care. They are not yet
available for residential care. This is one
type of Personal Budget.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Discharge to Assess (D2A)
If you are ready to leave hospital but still
need some care and support, you may be
able to go home with care provided in your
home for a short period while discussions
take place about the care and support you
may need in the longer term.

E
Early Intervention
Action that is taken at an early stage to prevent
problems worsening at a later stage.

H
Home care
Care provided in your own home by
paid care workers to help you with your
daily life.

I

Integrated Care
Joined up, coordinated health
and social care that is planned and
organised around the needs and
preferences of the individual
and their carer and family.

Page 51

35

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Glossary (continued)
J
Joint Commissioning
When two or more organisations in a local
area – usually the NHS and local council –
work together to plan services to meet the
needs of people who live in the area.

L
Learning Disability
A term that is used to describe a brain
impairment that may made it difficult for
someone to communicate, to understand new
or complex information, or to learn new skills.

M
Mental Health Problems
Problems with the way you think, feel and
react, which affect your ability to cope
with life, make choices and relate to
other people.

Multi-agency working
When different organisations work
together to provide a range of support for
people who have a wide range of needs.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Multi-disciplinary Team
A team of different professionals
working together to provide care and
support that meets your needs.

O
Older People
The largest group of people who
use adult social care services. Some
councils define people over the age of 50
as ‘older’, but social care services for older
people are usually for people over the age
of 65.

Outcomes
In Social Care, an ‘outcome’ refers to
an aim or objective you would like to
achieve or need to happen, for example,
continuing to live in your own home, or
being able to go out and about.

Q
Quality of Life
Your satisfaction with your life in
terms of wellbeing and happiness.

Page 52

36

Local Account 2020 - 2021

Adult Social Care Services

Glossary (continued)
R
Reablement
A way of helping you remain independent,
by giving you the opportunity to relearn or
regain some of the skills for daily living that
may have been lost as a result of illness,
accident or disability.

Supported Living
An alternative to residential care or living
with family that enables adults with
disabilities to live in their own home, with
the help they need to be independent.

T

Residential Care

Transfer of Care

Care in a care home, with or without
nursing, for people whose needs cannot be
met in the community.

When you move from one place
of care to another, such as from hospital
to your home, supported housing or
residential care.

S
Safeguarding
The process of ensuring that adults
at risk are not being abused, neglected
or exploited.

Service User
A person who receives services from
a care and support provider.

www.bromley.gov.uk

Page 53

37

Produced by:
Adult Social Care
LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY
Civic Centre, Stockwell Close,
Bromley BR1 3UH

Stock imagery by Pixabay, Unsplash and Pexels

© London Borough of Bromley 2021

Page 54

A product of the Strategy, Performance and Corporate Transformation Division

Information Item 3
HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE
Minutes of the meeting held at 4.00 pm on 7 October 2021
Present:
Councillor Mary Cooke (Chairman)
Councillor Gareth Allatt (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Kim Botting FRSA, Aisha Cuthbert,
Robert Evans, David Jefferys and Angela Wilkins
Roger Chant, Vicki Pryde and Marzena Zoladz
Also Present:
Councillor Mike Botting, Executive Assistant for Adult Care
and Health and Councillor Diane Smith, Portfolio Holder for
Adult Care and Health

10

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF
SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ian Dunn and Councillor
Angela Wilkins attended as substitute.
Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Judi Ellis and
Francis Poltera.

11

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

12

QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE
PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

No questions had been received.

13

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY SUBCOMMITTEE HELD ON 23RD MARCH 2021 AND THE
INFORMAL MEETING HELD ON 13TH JULY 2021 (FOR
NOTING)

RESOLVED that:
i) the minutes of the meeting held on 23rd March 2021 be agreed; and
1

Page 55

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
ii) the minutes of the informal meeting held on 13th July 2021 be noted.

14

PRESENTATION BY THE CHARTWELL CANCER TRUST

The Chairman welcomed Michael Douglas, Founder and Hon Trustee of the
Chartwell Cancer Trust to the meeting to provide an update on the work of the
charity.
Mr Douglas informed Members that he had been diagnosed with leukaemia in
2003 and had received treatment in the Chartwell Unit at the Princess Royal
University Hospital (PRUH). During this time he had been struck by how
understaffed the Unit was, particularly the shortage of Health Care Assistants
(HCA). In 2005 he had established the Chartwell Cancer Trust and the first
fundraising was for the cost of funding an extra HCA in the treatment suite.
Ever since, the Chartwell Cancer Trust had funded additional medical staff
specifically for the unit, including junior doctors and haematologists; specialist
haematology and breast screening clinics; and transportation for those
patients that required it. The money received by the Chartwell Cancer Trust
had also been used to fund the refurbishment of the treatment suite within the
Chartwell Unit to improve the layout to make it more accessible, moving the
reception to the front and installing air conditioning and a coffee machine for
the nurses.
Since then, the Chartwell Cancer Trust had grown and provided support to
other out of borough hospitals – Queen Elizabeth Hospital – Woolwich (QEH),
Croydon University Hospital, King’s College Hospital, Guy’s Hospital and St
Thomas’ Hospital. Through fundraising, the Chartwell Children’s Cancer Trust
also provided support to the Tiger Ward – QEH and Frog Ward – Croydon
University Hospital. The nurses on the Tiger Ward had created a “wish list”,
and over time they had installed a kitchen, new flooring and beds. Fundraising
towards the target required to develop a new playroom on the Frog Ward was
nearly complete. Money raised was also used to run four oncology groups,
purchase tickets for the children to attend the Christmas pantomime, and fund
a holiday home on the Isle of Wight that the children could visit. The funding
of local Childhood Cancer Support Groups for children undergoing treatment
for cancer or leukaemia provided monthly meetups. These events provided
families with the opportunity to make special memories together and allowed
them to have some “normal” time with other families in similar situations. It
also provided parents with the opportunity to “swap news”. One parent had
suggested the development of an app, which could be used following a
diagnosis, that showed a film of each stage the child would go through on
their treatment journey ahead.
Mr Douglas highlighted that courses of treatment for childhood cancer were
much longer than those for adult cancers, which often left the children missing
out on time at school. To help combat this, the AV1 ‘No Isolation’ Robot had
been created. The robot could sit on the child’s desk at school, and acted as
their eyes, ears and voice in the classroom, allowing them to feel as if they
were in the room. It could be accessed from wherever the child was, be it in

2

Page 56

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
hospital or at home, and allowed them to stay connected with their
classmates, peers and teachers and continue with their education when they
were too ill to physically attend school.
Other fundraising projects for King’s included support for Professor John
Strouboulis’s cultured cell and gene editing research project; a specific brain
cancer research project; and a “Virtual Conferencing” facility for a cancer
Multi-Disciplinary Meeting Room to host meetings. Discussions were also
taking place regarding the possibility of redeveloping the education centre.
Further updates from the Chartwell Cancer Trust were available via the
following social media platforms:
Facebook - @ChartwellCancerTrust
Twitter - @ChartwellCancer
Instagram - @chartwellcancertrust
The Chairman thanked Mr Douglas for his presentation to the Health Scrutiny
Sub-Committee.
RESOLVED that the presentation be noted.

15

UPDATE FROM THE SEL CCG

Vaccinations
Cheryl Rehal, Acting Head of Primary Care, Bromley – SEL CCG (“Acting
Head of Primary Care”) provided an update on vaccination uptake in Bromley.
The Acting Head of Primary Care informed Members that the uptake of the
COVID-19 vaccination (first dose) had commenced in December 2020 –
uptake in Bromley had peaked in spring 2021, and the second doses had
been delivered during a busy period in summer 2021. The uptake in the
borough was high – the total percentage uptake for the first dose of the
vaccine was over 80%, and just under 80% for the second dose. The
vaccination of 12–15-year-olds had now commenced, and it was anticipated
that vaccinations would have been provided to this cohort at all schools in the
borough by the end of November 2021.
In relation to the COVID-19 booster programme, it was noted that this would
help to improve the protection that people had from their first two doses of the
vaccine, giving longer term protection against getting seriously ill from COVID 19. Those that were eligible would be offered a booster dose from six months
after they had received their second dose. The booster dose offered to most
people would be the Pfizer/BioNTech vaccine or Moderna vaccine. In
response to a question from a Co-opted Member, the Acting Head of Primary
Care said that the advice issued by the Joint Committee on Vaccination and
Immunisation (JCVI) was for the Pfizer/BioNTech vaccine or Moderna vaccine
to be given regardless of the vaccine used for a patients’ first or second
doses. Dr Angela Bhan, Borough Based Director – SEL CCG (“Borough
Based Director”) highlighted that this was general advice as the use of
3

Page 57

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
different vaccines showed a strong protective response. However it was
recommended that anyone with a complicated medical history speak with their
GP as some people may instead be offered a booster dose of the
Oxford/AstraZeneca vaccine.
The Acting Head of Primary Care highlighted that the circulation of flu had
been very limited in the 2020/21 season and as a result, a lower level of
population immunity against flu was expected this winter. This was also
expected to be the first winter when seasonal influenza virus (and other
respiratory viruses) would cocirculate alongside COVID-19. To help mitigate
the potential impact from flu, the NHS would vaccinate additional cohorts, and
aim for a high uptake of the flu vaccine to maximise protection. As there was a
high degree of overlap of those eligible for flu and COVID-19 boosters, the
CCG was encouraging co-promotion to eligible individuals, and coadministration wherever possible. With regards to plans for the autumn, it was
noted that the coinciding seasonal flu campaign and COVID-19 booster
programme would bring additional workforce pressures – the preparation and
administration of the COVID-19 booster vaccine was more time consuming
than the flu vaccine, and the 15-minute post vaccination observation period
for Pfizer currently remained a requirement. The volunteer workforce had
been an essential part of the success of the vaccination programme, however
since the easing of restrictions, and people returning to work and daily
routines, the pool of volunteers had been affected.
In response to questions, the Acting Head of Primary Care said they were
aware of some issues with the supply of the flu vaccination in early
September, with a number of GP practices having their scheduled deliveries
cancelled. This had now been resolved, and flu clinics were now well
underway – it was noted that pharmacies were also administering the flu
vaccination. Supply of the flu vaccination would continue to be monitored, and
it was hoped that there would be no further impact on the campaign. With
regards to co-administration of the vaccines, it was highlighted that the
logistics were challenging as the Pfizer vaccine needed to be diluted and used
within six hours. Some GP practices would send patients to get their flu
vaccine following their COVID-19 jab – however some did not have the space
or staff to deliver both at the same time, and uptake of the flu vaccination
would therefore be promoted to these patients.
The Chairman considered that some GP surgeries were being more proactive
than others at setting up flu vaccination clinics and asked if this was being
monitored. The Acting Head of Primary Care confirmed that uptake in
practices was monitored and highlighted that a core element of work for GP
practices was to deliver the flu vaccination to their patients. In response to a
further question from the Chairman, the Borough Based Director advised that
it was difficult to measure the uptake of the flu vaccination by pharmacy as
this information was sent to the patients GP practice.
The Chairman raised concerns that patients were experiencing issues with
the availability of flu clinic appointments. If only one clinic was arranged,
patients were being asked to ring back at a later date – this was not good

4

Page 58

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
customer service, especially when the aim was to encourage uptake. The
Borough Based Director acknowledged that there had been some issues in
relation to GP practices managing the flow of the flu vaccinations, which had
partly been due to the initial messages on co-administration being unclear. In
previous years, Bromley had been the most successful borough for
vaccinating the over 65’s cohort which would not have been possible without
the regular support and overview of the Acting Head of Primary Care and her
team.
A Member enquired if walk-in flu clinics would be held in the borough. The
Acting Head of Primary Care advised that these were not available in GP
practices. It may be possible for pharmacies to provide a walk-in offer,
however this would have initially been affected by the limited supplies
received and lots of locations wanted appointments booked to help manage
the flow of patients. There was currently a limited offer, but walk-in clinics had
not been completely disregarded. The Co-opted Member representing
Healthwatch Bromley advised that they would be happy to receive any patient
feedback and would flag any issues with the Acting Head of Primary Care.
Sub-Committee Members were advised that mandatory vaccinations for care
home staff would come into force from 11 th November 2021, and all visiting
professionals would also be obliged to show their vaccination status. Work
would continue with the care homes and their staff to encourage uptake of the
vaccination, and an evergreen offer for staff wishing to receive their primary
dose of the COVID-19 vaccine would remain in place. The COVID-19 booster
and flu vaccinations would soon commence in care homes, for both residents
and staff who consented to these vaccines – the CCG would monitor delivery
and uptake of vaccines in the borough’s care homes, and work with
OneBromley partners to promote and support uptake.
A Member enquired if staffing issues were anticipated in care homes following
the mandatory vaccinations coming into force in November. The Assistant
Director for Integrated Commissioning advised that by the third week of
September, 94% of care home staff had received at least one dose of the
COVID-19 vaccination which would allow a second dose to be administered
by 11th November. It was noted that of the remaining staff (around 120
individuals), some would be exempt from receiving the vaccine. Further work
would continue with the care homes. Care homes were reporting that they
were not anticipating an emergency shortage of staff, however this situation
would be monitored closely.
In response to a question, the Acting Head of Primary Care advised that for
any individual who was unvaccinated it was expected that their employer
would undertake a risk assessment and provide Personal Protective
Equipment (PPE) or redeploy them if required. People were encouraged to
continue to have conversations regarding the vaccine if they were still unsure
whether or not to get their jab. In relation to Bromley care home staff, the
Assistant Director for Integrated Commissioning noted that advice and
support continued to be provided and this could be better reported on as the
11th November deadline approached.
5

Page 59

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
A map was provided showing the COVID-19 vaccination sites across the
borough. The Acting Head of Primary Care noted that the Hospital Hub would
remain open to staff only during the winter period for them to receive
vaccinations, and that additional pharmacies were now also deploying
COVID-19 vaccinations.

GP Access
Dr Andrew Parson, GP Clinical Lead – SEL CCG (“GP Clinical Lead”) advised
that General Practice had remained open, working hard to be both proactive
and reactive. GP practices were currently dealing with the roll out of the flu
vaccination programme and reaching out to those patients who had long-term
health conditions prior to the pandemic – it was noted that there was an
increased demand in terms of acute illness and mental health.
The GP Clinical Lead highlighted that infection control measures would not be
lifted anytime soon as it helped reduce cross infection and stopped outbreaks.
Some patients and practices had found the overnight changes to access at
the beginning of the pandemic difficult, but others had found that digital and
phone methods saved them time. These digital modes had been instigated
without much build up and GP practices had faced major pressures.
The Acting Head of Primary Care informed Members that a National GP
Patient Survey was completed each year, which measured views on patient
access to: local GP services; making an appointment; last appointment;
overall experience; and when the GP practice was closed. This year, a set of
questions related to COVID-19 had also been included. Response rates in
Bromley were high at 36% (the SEL average was 28%), however it was noted
that the survey did not include qualitative data, which limited interpretation
and insight.
Overall, Bromley had received positive responses, with 84.1% of patients
describing the experience of their GP practice as “very good” or “fairly good”.
Another area of strength was the high level of confidence and trust that
patients had in the healthcare professional they were seen by. Areas for
improvement included accessibility and the appointment times that were
available to patients – it was noted that the percentage of positive responses
for Bromley were above the SEL average, however there was more work to
be done. In relation to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, Bromley
patients had avoided making appointments and visiting their GP practices last
year – it was considered that this may have contributed to the current high
levels of demand for healthcare.
The Acting Head of Primary Care informed Members that the data from this
survey would be used to inform changes to access and GP practices were
being supported to:
- Upgrade their telephone systems, to enable improved call
waiting/queuing arrangements;

6

Page 60

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
-

Review voicemail messages, to keep these succinct and relevant to
their patients;
Train reception staff in customer service and customer management;
Publicise to patients that their doors were open, whilst maintaining
‘Covid safe’ measures;
Encourage patients to attend face to face appointments where clinically
necessary; and
Offer additional face to face appointments, including ‘catch up’ clinics,
overflow hub appointments and, as part of winter plans, extra ‘hot hub’
clinics.

It was noted that demand for all parts of the health system remained very high
and further support was being provided for GP practices to:
- Hold appointment slots for 111 to directly book in patients to their
practice GP;
- Directly refer self-care/pharmacy appropriate queries to a local
pharmacy of choice; and
- Bolster workforce gaps with a Bromley Locum Bank of experienced,
qualified clinicians.
In relation to modernising primary care, the Acting Head of Primary Care
advised that remote monitoring technology was being expanded. This
included:
- Oximetry@home to monitor oxygen saturation levels in the blood and
ensure a timely escalation of care if required;
- BP@home to monitor blood pressure for patients with diagnosed
hypertension to ensure controls were maintained; and
- ‘Arc’ technology in care homes, improving rapid, reliable and regular
clinical assessments for care home residents.
As patients were increasingly using online services, GP practices were also
being supported to:
- Continue to upgrade and modernise their websites, reviewed by
independent Healthwatch audits;
- Gather timely feedback from their patients through a Healthwatch
‘widget’ tool; and
- Work with the Clinical System provider to improve patient experience of
e-Consults, the online consultation system.
The next steps would focus on three main areas:
- Promoting public messages as part of a wider winter campaign:
GP practices were open, but the pandemic was not over; highlight
positive stories that recognised the contribution of general practice;
explain the different ways to access general practice services.
-

Improving through patient feedback:
targeting support to GP practices to use insights from national and
local feedback to inform improvements, and maintain regular feedback
mechanisms through ongoing engagement, including with those who
may be digitally excluded.
7

Page 61

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
-

Reducing the gap:
determining current capacity (data analysis and audits), alongside
demand within general practice, and where additional capacity could
be further added into the local primary care system, processes
streamlined, or back-office improvements made to increase efficiency.

The Vice-Chairman highlighted that it was concerning to see that 10% of
patients had avoided making a GP appointment in the last year because they
found it too difficult. The Acting Head of Primary Care advised that easy-read
materials had been created as part of the winter campaign – this would
promote how patients could use General Practice safely and appropriately,
reducing the pressure on Urgent Care. More widely, it was acknowledged that
it could be confusing for older people to know what to do and where to go, as
lots of information was provided. Lessons had been learnt from the last year
and communication would be slicker with clearer messages – it was
anticipated that improving the websites of GP practices would help this
further. The GP Clinical Lead noted that communications would be looked at
collectively with partners. Primary Care Networks (PCNs) were being
encouraged to get to know their local Councillors and MPs as they could help
disseminate communications.
In response to a question, the GP Clinical Lead advised that pregnant women
could make early self-referrals directly to the Maternity Unit and seek advice.
The Acting Head of Primary Care noted that this self-referral service had been
a benefit of the online consultation model. In response to a further question,
the GP Clinical Lead said that webinars had been held relating to the delivery
of care programmes, including vaccines, for pregnant women and their
families and this would continue to be an area of focus.
In response to questions from the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Health,
the GP Clinical Lead advised that a Physiotherapist would be in post at a GP
surgery from the following week. Self-referrals could be made via the Vita
Health website and would be heavily promoted. In response to a question
from a Co-opted Member, the Acting Head of Primary Care said that Mental
Health practitioners would be in post by the end of the financial year, funded
by Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust. There would be one Mental Health
practitioner per PCN, and they would work across the borough as a team to
provide consistency. It was hoped that the team could be expanded in the
future – these posts specialised in adult mental health, and children’s mental
health was an area of growing concern. The GP Clinical Lead highlighted that
once the new clinical practitioners were in place there would be learning
required on both sides and the impact of the staff may take a while to bed in
and show effect.
The Chairman considered that GP practices were not fully aware of how the
population was feeling, and how angry they were becoming at the perceived
inability to access the care that they wanted. It was noted that the telephony
equipment being used in some GP practices was extremely out of date and
the importance of getting the phone system and customer service right was

8

Page 62

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
emphasised, and the need for staff to undertake conflict resolution/avoidance
training.

Long Covid
Mark Cheung, One Bromley Programme Director – SEL CCG (“One Bromley
Programme Director”) provided an update on the development of Long Covid
services in Bromley.
The One Bromley Programme Director advised that a post-COVID pathway
had been developed which had four different elements, and patients could go
back and forth to whichever was the most appropriate:
- GP / primary care (patient identification, assessment and investigation);
- self-management;
- community services; and
- acute services (specialist input, hospital services).
With regards to acute services, a specialist post-COVID syndrome
assessment clinic had been established at the Princess Royal University
Hospital (PRUH) from April 2021. The clinic was continuing to receive
referrals and was extremely busy. Due to the pressures on this service, a
community offer had since been developed for Long Covid patients which had
a soft launch at the end of August 2021. Through this pathway, patients could
access therapists, consultants, GPs, mental health services and third sector
care co-ordination. Over the last month the service had seen 10-15 patients
per week and was fully staffed – from the following week a notice would be
included in the GP bulletin to advise that the service would now be taking
referrals from GPs. It was noted that funding was currently unconfirmed – the
service would continue to be provided, however capacity would need to be
monitored closely.
The One Bromley Programme Director informed Members that the community
service provided patients with an 8-week course covering symptoms such as
breathlessness, fatigue and the impact that Long Covid could have on mental
health. Those patients that were suitable for self-management would be
signposted to resources within the community and could also access the Your
COVID Recovery website, library resources and support groups delivered by
Bromley Well. As services were developed, it provided data regarding the
percentage of the population who were suffering from Long Covid. Some
studies had previously estimated this to be around 10% of patients – however
further studies now suggested this ranged between 2%-12%. The community
service had been based on 6% of the population requiring access and it was
anticipated that around 500 patients would be seen over the next six months.
A Member highlighted that Long Covid was a serious and significant issue.
Thanks were extended to the One Bromley Programme Director and his team
for the work undertaken – Bromley was leading the way with its Long Covid
service, which would reduce the pressure on both GPs and the PRUH.

9

Page 63

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
NHS patients referred to private health providers
The Chairman noted that the reference to NHS patients being referred to
private health providers related to a letter received from a member of the
public. It was emphasised that the both the PRUH and CCG were looking into
this case in further detail.
In response to a question from the Chairman, the Borough Based Director
advised that this complaint had related to a hospital outside of the SEL CCG,
and King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and the PRUH had not
been involved at any point in the process. For NHS patients referred to private
hospitals a contract should be in place – at a minimum this should include a
follow-up appointment, transportation, meals and a discharge summary, and
aftercare if required. In this case these arrangements had not been followed
up by the private hospital and the Borough Based Director would be taking
this forward.
The Chairman thanked the representatives for their updates to the SubCommittee.
RESOLVED that the updates be noted.

16

UPDATE FROM KING'S COLLEGE HOSPITAL NHS
FOUNDATION TRUST

Jonathan Lofthouse, Site Chief Executive – PRUH and South Sites (“Site
Chief Executive”) provided an update on the King’s College Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust.
The Site Chief Executive informed Members that as of that afternoon, there
were 23 patients across the PRUH and South Sites with a confirmed inpatient
diagnosis of COVID-19. Of these patients, 22 were in general beds and 1 was
in an intensive therapy bed. It was highlighted that the number of inpatients
had remained stable over the last four and a half months, and there did not
appear to be any trends in terms of the age range and ethnicity of patients.
Members were advised that Bromley’s Mass Vaccination Centre would come
to natural close around mid-December 2021. In the coming weeks the PRUH
site would be used to deliver third doses of the COVID-19 vaccination to
healthcare staff.
The Site Chief Executive advised that in terms of the recovery of elective
surgeries that had been delayed due to the pandemic, the Trust was currently
performing just below the national standard – for cancers this currently stood
at 91%, compared to the national figure of 93%. It was noted this had
improved greatly since the second wave of the pandemic.
With regards to the latest Friends and Family Test data, the PRUH had
received high scores for the following areas of care: professional and
competent; emotional and psychological support; compassion; and

10

Page 64

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
politeness. There had been some shortfalls in terms of the emergency care,
which had been impacted by three main factors. This included a reduction in
the number of Physicians – a number had been stranded overseas due to the
pandemic however it was anticipated that this issue would shortly be resolved.
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) had visited the PRUH in June 2021 and
reassessed the ‘inadequate’ rating issued in November 2019. The Emergency
Department was now rated as ‘requires improvement’, with nursing rated as
‘good’, which showed positive signs of improvement.
With regards to investment, the Site Chief Executive advised that two
inpatient wards had been completely refurbished, and work would continue to
ensure that all 18 wards were up to the same standard over a rolling two-year
programme. It was noted that several of the wards were now classed as
‘dementia friendly’. An Older Person’s Assessment Unit would be opened at
the PRUH in November, providing dedicated assessment and treatment
spaces. It was also planned that a Rapid Diagnostic Centre would be in
operation in the New Year. The Endoscopy Unit at the PRUH was receiving
investment of £20m for two new buildings, housing 6 procedure rooms.
Construction was expected to take 14 months to complete, and it was
anticipated that ground would be broken for the initial works during December
2021.
The Site Chief Executive advised that the Trust had received a bonus
payment for responding to the elective restart favourably and part of this had
been used to invest in the modular theatre at Orpington Hospital. This would
allow thousands more surgeries to take place each year and help to reduce
waiting times. Final designs had been approved and a consultation with
residents was underway. A decision on the planning permission for the 195space car parking deck at the PRUH was expected shortly – designs had
been updated to minimise disruption and a favourable outcome was
anticipated. Thanks were extended to Councillors for helping to secure 400
park and ride spaces at a nearby garden centre during the period of
construction. It was further noted that both Orpington Hospital and the PRUH
had new staff wellbeing hubs, which could be accessed 24/7, and from
December 2021 memorial gardens would be opened.
The Site Chief Executive informed Members that King’s had launched a new
strategy for the coming years – ‘Strong Roots, Global Reach Strategy for
King’s 2021-2026’. Three core areas for PRUH focus would be frailty,
diagnostics and elective surgery. It was highlighted that there were no
concerns relating to the Trusts current operating budget. Members were
advised that evidential improvement relating to the emergency care standard
and frailty unit would be presented at future meetings of the Health Scrutiny
Sub-Committee.
On behalf of the Sub-Committee, the Chairman thanked the Site Chief
Executive for his update and expressed her gratitude for all the work he had
undertaken.
RESOLVED that the update be noted.
11

Page 65

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
17

WINTER PLANNING

The Assistant Director for Integrated Commissioning provided and update in
relation to the Winter Plan 2021/22.
It was noted that an earlier version of the Winter Plan 2021/22 had been
presented to the Adult Care and Health Policy Development and Scrutiny
Committee at its meeting on 9 th September 2021. The Plan was now complete
and being mobilised on the five pillars as follows:
1. Increasing System Capacity
2. Data Sharing and Escalation
3. Single Point of Access and Discharge Arrangements
4. Admissions Avoidance
5. Communication and Engagement
The Assistant Director for Integrated Commissioning highlighted that pillar
number 4 – Admissions Avoidance would be a key part of the Plan, and
further communication and engagement would be needed. Members were
advised that progress would be reported on throughout the winter period.
RESOLVED that the update be noted.

18

UPDATE FROM HEALTHWATCH BROMLEY

Marzena Zoladz, Service Coordinator – Healthwatch Bromley (“Service
Coordinator”) provided an update to the Sub-Committee regarding the
Healthwatch Bromley Quarter 1 2021-2022 Patient Engagement Report.
The Service Coordinator informed Members that over 600 reviews had been
collated during the Quarter 1 period (April to June 2021). Overall, based on
the star ratings received, 65% of responses received from patients had been
positive, and 28% had been negative. It was noted that during Quarter 1
feedback from patients had been collected through online review platforms,
telephone engagement, and direct feedback could also be left via the
Healthwatch Bromley website. It was anticipated that during Quarter 2 face to
face engagement would take place.
The report included various reviews of GP and hospital services which
highlighted patients’ high levels of satisfaction with the attitude of staff, the
quality of care and treatment. However there were some concerns regarding
with the need to improve external and internal communication, and systems
for booking appointments. Another area where patients had indicated high
satisfaction in all areas (including quality of treatment, communication and
cleanliness) was dental services, with 95% of all reviews having been
positive. This was in contrast to complaints received regarding patients being
unable to access NHS dentists, which was something that Healthwatch
England would be looking at in further detail.

12

Page 66

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
With regards to Children and Young People’s – SEND services, 52% of
negative reviews related to access to information, advice and guidance and
meeting needs. In response to a question, the Service Coordinator said that
Healthwatch Bromley would welcome closer working with Children and Young
People’s – SEND services to provide more clarity. A Co-opted Member asked
that an update on this be provided at a future meeting of the Health Scrutiny
Sub-Committee.
The Chairman thanked Marzena Zoladz, Service Coordinator – Healthwatch
Bromley for her update to the Sub-Committee and the Vice-Chairman
congratulated her on an excellent piece of work.
RESOLVED that the update be noted.

19

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 AND MATTERS OUTSTANDING

Report CSD21110
Members considered the forward rolling work programme for the Health
Scrutiny Sub-Committee.
As suggested during the meeting, an update on the measures to improve
access to information, advice and guidance and meeting needs within
Children and Young People’s – SEND services would be included on the
Work Programme and brought to a future meeting of the Health Scrutiny SubCommittee.
Members were asked to notify the Clerk if there were any further items that
they would like added to the work programme.
RESOLVED that the update be noted.

20

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There was no other business.

21

FUTURE MEETING DATES

4.00pm, Thursday 13th January 2022
4.00pm, Wednesday 20th April 2022

THE CHAIRMAN TO MOVE THAT THE ATTACHED REPORTS, NOT
INCLUDED IN THE PUBLISHED AGENDA, BE CONSIDERED AS A
MATTER OF URGENCY ON THE FOLLOWING GROUNDS:
Following the publication of the agenda, the Leader of the Council received
13

Page 67

Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee
7 October 2021
the attached letter from the Londonwide Local Medical Committees, drawing
attention to matters which fall within the remit of the Health Scrutiny SubCommittee. In order to deal with matters efficiently and effectively, the
Chairman agreed to add the following urgent item to the agenda:

S22

ABUSE OF GENERAL PRACTICE STAFF

Discussion on this item took place earlier in the meeting, following the item on
‘Update from the SEL CCG – GP Access’.
The Chairman noted that the letter received from the Londonwide Local
Medical Committees did not recognise the problems associated with GP
access. GP’s and practice staff had worked hard throughout the pandemic,
although it was considered that the most efficient processes had not
necessarily been used. The Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee would offer all
the help that it could – it was highlighted that the issue of GP access had
been raised several months ago, and this was a real problem that needed to
be addressed.
The GP Clinical Lead advised that data indicated the average call time to a
GP practice had increased from 2 to 3 minutes over the pandemic. This
increase had been impacted by the need for staff to explain the new ways of
accessing appointments, and it was noted that there was a high turnover of
reception staff, which was not specific to Bromley. Pressure and morale were
“at a tipping point” in most practices. The support of the Sub-Committee was
appreciated and some of the solutions were being worked through in relation
to telephony and access. Customer service training was already being
undertaken, but following the comments received today this would be looked
at further.

The Meeting ended at 5.57 pm

Chairman

14

Page 68

